
CITY OF CLAREMONT  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

AGENDA PACKET 
 

 
 
 

January 7, 2013 
Claremont City Hall    

7:00 pm 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 CITY OF CLAREMONT  

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Regular Meeting  

January 7, 2013  

7:00 PM 

Council Chambers, Claremont City Hall  

 

AGENDA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

3. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. MAYOR’S REPORT  

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA  

 

A. Regular Meeting Minutes –December 3, 2012   

B. Closed Session Minutes – December 3, 2012  

C. Fiscal Year 2014 Budget Calendar  

 

6. CITIZEN’S CONCERNS AND COMMENTS 

 

7. PRESENTATIONS 

 

A. PJ Stanley Memorial Scholarships  

 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Resolution 13-12 Opposing Taking of Water Systems  

B. 2013 Legislative Agenda  

 

10. DEPARTMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

A. Quarterly Financial Report  

B. Youth Council  

C. Fire Department 

D. Police Department 

E. Public Works 

F. Rescue Squad  

G. Utilities Department  

H. Planning and Zoning 

I. Parks & Recreation Committee  

J. Appearance Committee 



 

“A progressive City dedicated to preserving small town values while planning for the future” 

 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  

 

12. CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

13. ADJOURN 

 

 
City of Claremont Board & Committee Meetings 

 
City Council Meeting         February 4

th
                Council Chambers 7:00pm 

 1
st
 Monday of each month 

 

Planning Board    January 14
th

           Council Chambers 7:00 pm  

2
nd

 Monday of each month 

 

Appearance Committee   January 28
th

      Claremont Library 6:00 pm  

4
th

 Monday of each month 

 

Parks & Recreation     January 28
th

          Claremont City Offices 7:00 pm   

4
th

 Monday of each month 

 

Youth Council     January 5
th

                 Council Chambers 3:00 pm 

1
st
 Sunday of each month 

 

Friends of the Library    January 22
nd

           Claremont Library 6:00 pm  

4
th

 Tuesday of each month 

 

Seniors Morning Out   January 16
th

        1
st
 Baptist Fellowship Hall 8:30 am  

3
rd

 Wednesday of each month 

 

 

 

NOTES: 



EXHIBIT 5A 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: January 7, 2013        

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Approval of Minutes  

 

Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on December 3, 2012.  

 

  

 

 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes    

 

 

 

 

 



 

Monday, December 3, 2012    Regular Council Meeting     Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday, December 3, 2012 
 

The regular City Council meeting of the City of Claremont was held in the Council Chambers at City 

Hall at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, December 3, 2012. 

 

The following members of the Claremont City Council were present: Mayor David Morrow, Mayor Pro 

Tem Timothy Lowrance, Councilmember Shawn Brown, Councilmember Nicky Setzer, Councilmember 

Dale Sherrill and Councilmember Dale Setzer. 

 

The following personnel of the City of Claremont were present: City Attorney, Bob Grant, City 

Manager, Doug Barrick, Administrative Support Clerk, Mandy Buff, Police Chief, Gerald Tolbert, 

Police Captain, Gary Bost, Fire Chief, Gary Sigmon and Public Works Director, Tom Winkler.  

 

Others in attendance were: Henry Helton, Laurie LoCicero, Susan Tucker, Jason Lowrance, Robert 

Smith, Andrea Ramsey, Bryan Martin, Allen Long, Hannah Elliott, David Allen, David Clark, Kay Bost, 

Sarah Lemons, Zach Gardner, Robert Winrow and Mike Hathaway. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mayor David Morrow called the Claremont City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

The agenda was approved as presented. 

 

3.  INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

The invocation was led by Reverend Paul Crisp from St. Marks Lutheran Church in Claremont. 

Councilmember Dale Sherrill led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

4.  MAYOR'S REPORT 

 

Mayor David Morrow reported the employees award dinner on November 10
th

 was a success. There was 

a good crowd at the Veteran's Day ceremony on November 11
th

. Bill Richards was the speaker. The 

weather brought a big crowd for the Christmas Parade on December 1
st
. There were 150 entries in the 

parade. 

 

5.  CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A. Regular Meeting Minutes – November 5, 2012 - A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Timothy 

Lowrance to accept November 5, 2012 regular meeting minutes as presented. Councilmember Nicky 

Setzer seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 



 

Monday, December 3, 2012    Regular Council Meeting     Page 2 of 3 

B. Closed Session Minutes – November 5, 2012 - A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Timothy 

Lowrance to accept November 5, 2012 closed session minutes as presented. Councilmember Nicky 

Setzer seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

6.  CITIZEN'S CONCERNS AND COMMENTS  

 

None. 

 

7.  PRESENTATION 

 

A. Police Department – Chief Gerald Tolbert presented Lieutenant Allen Long with his Advanced Law 

Enforcement Certification and presented him with his Lieutenant lapel pins. Chief Tolbert also presented 

Deputy Chief Gary Bost with his Deputy Chief lapel pins. 

 

B. Fiscal Year 2013 Departmental Goals Update – Each department head gave a brief update on 

where they are on their FY 2013 departmental goals. 

 

C. 2012 Action Plan Update – City Manager Doug Barrick gave a brief overview of the goals and the 

status of each goal. 

 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

 

None. 

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Resolution 11-12 2013 WPCOG Delegate – A motion was made by Councilmember Shawn Brown 

to approve resolution 11-12 as presented. Councilmember Dale Setzer seconded the motion. The motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

B. Resolution 12-12 Surplus Property - A motion was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer to 

approve resolution 12-12 as presented. Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance seconded the motion. The 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

C. 2013 City Council Meeting Calendar - A motion was made by Councilmember Nicky Setzer to 

approve 2013 city council meeting calendar as presented. Councilmember Shawn Brown seconded the 

motion. The motion passed unanimously.  

 

10. DEPARMENT & COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

A.  Youth Council – The Youth Council had children's pictures taken with Santa and did crafts with 

them in the library after the Christmas Parade. They have three new members. The Easter egg hunt in 

the park is coming up and so is the Relay for Life fundraiser. They are going to start an anti-bullying 

campaign. 

 

B.  Fire Department – Chief Gary Sigmon reported some members are still working on their 1403 

standard. All members have worked on the new ladder truck and the truck was ready for the parade in 

time. 

 



 

Monday, December 3, 2012    Regular Council Meeting     Page 3 of 3 

C.  Police Department – Chief Gerald Tolbert reported the suspect from the Dollar General break in 

received 10 years in prison. A break in was discovered December 3
rd

, the house has been vacant for 13 

years. 

 

D.  Public Works – Public Works Director Tom Winkler reported the Christmas lights were put up my 

his crew this year. They are reworking & repairing sewer out fall lines, manhole rings and lids. 

 

E. Rescue Squad – City Manager Barrick reported the Rescue Squad ran 74 calls, 65 of which were hot. 

Their average response time was 6 minutes and 16 seconds. Their annual Christmas party is coming up 

and Gary Reitzel has been a member of the squad for 35 years. 

 

F. Utilities Department – City Manager Barrick stated he doesn't have a report for this month he will 

catch up next month. 

 

G. Planning and Zoning – City Planner Laurie LoCicero reported the planning board met in November 

to discuss updating the sign ordinance. She finalized the occupancy certificate for Subway. 

 

H. Parks & Recreation – Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance thanked everyone for helping with the 

Christmas parade it was a success. The carriage rides was also a success. The Senior Citizen's dinner is 

coming up soon. The Claremont Optimist Club finished their baseball season with a 16-0 record. 

 

I.  Appearance Committee – Councilmember Nicky Setzer reported the committee did not meet in 

November. 

 

12.  CITY MANAGER'S REPORT – City Manager Doug Barrick thanked everyone who helped with 

the P.J. Stanley Memorial 5k run. There were 67 runners. The water & sewer billing software is 95% 

complete. The unveiling of the history wall will be at the first of the year. The sidewalk construction is 

expected to start in August 2013.  

 

13. CLOSED SESSION – At 8:12 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance made a motion to go into 

closed session in reference to G.S. 143-318.11(3) (Attorney-Client Privilege) and G.S. 143-318.11(a)(4) 

(EDC Contract). Councilmember Shawn Brown seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

At 9:46 p.m. Councilmember Dale Setzer made a motion to adjourn the closed session. Councilmember 

Shawn Brown seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  

 

14.  ADJOURN - At 9:47 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Lowrance moved to adjourn the City Council 

meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Nicky Setzer. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Respectively submitted, 

Mandy D. Buff, Administrative Support Clerk    

 

 

                                                                                                Attested: 

 

 

 

____________________________                                         _______________________________ 

     David B. Morrow, Mayor                                                         Douglas L. Barrick, City Clerk 

 



EXHIBIT 5B 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: January 7, 2013      

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Approval of Minutes  

 

Approve the minutes from the City Council Closed Session meeting held on  

December 3, 2012.  

 

  

 

 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes    

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT 5C 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: January 7, 2013    

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  FY 2014 Budget  Calendar  

 

In order to keep the FY 2014 budget on track for adoption on June 3, 2013 the FY 2014 

Budget Calendar sets milestones and deadlines for staff and the City Council to work 

towards in preparing the Fiscal Year 2014 budget.  

 

 

 

Recommendation: Accept & Approve calendar      

 

 

 

 

 



Date Description

January 7, 2013 City Council receives Budget calendar

January 14, 2013 Department heads submit CIP requests 

February 4, 2013 Department heads submit proposed FY 13 goals

February 6, 2013 Department head meeting to review/revise goals

February 18, 2013 Manager finalizes Recommended CIP

February 20, 2013 Departments submit line item budget requests to Finance Director

February 20, 2013 Finance Officer submits revenue estimates

March 2, 2013
Coucil, Manager, and Staff workshop to discuss FY 2013 Budget, Goals 

and CIP

March 4-8,2013 Manager and departments hold budget meetings

April 19, 2013 Staff finalizes, prints and prepares budget for distribution

May 6, 2013 Manager submits recommended FY 2013 Budget to Council and Citizens 

May 13-24 ,2013 Additional budget workshops, if needed

June 3, 2013 Public Hearing on FY 13 Budget & City Council  adopts budget

Bold = Council Action

City of Clarmeont 

Budget Calendar

For Fiscal Year 2013-2014

 22 



EXHIBIT 6 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: January 7, 2013      

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested: Citizen’s Concerns and Comments  

 

North Carolina General Statues require that the City Council allow time at each public 

meeting for Citizen Input.  

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: Hear Public Concerns and Comments   

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT 7A 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: January 7, 2013     

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  PJ Stanley Memorial Scholarships     

 

The PJ Stanley Memorial Scholarship Committee has reviewed the applications for the 

Spring 2013 scholarship awards to honor former City Councilman James “PJ” Stanley. 

The recipients of the Spring 2013 awards are:  

 

Brandon Ham  

2010 Graduate of Bunker Hill High School  

Member of the Claremont Fire Department  

Attending CVCC for Fire Protection Technology  

 

 

Jessalyn Johnson  

2012 Graduate of UNCC in Exercise Science  

Member of the Claremont Rescue Squad  

Attending CVCC for an Emergency Medical Science Degree  

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: Allow Brenda Stanley to present the awards   

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT 9A 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: January 7, 2013   

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager & The North Carolina League of 

Municipalities 

 

 

 

 

Action Requested: Approve Resolution 13-12 Opposing the Forced Taking of 

Water Systems in North Carolina.   

 
In the 2011 long session, legislation was introduced in North Carolina that would have forced 

the involuntary transfer of a city-owned water system to the control of a Municipal Sewer 

District.  The statewide legislation was written in such a way that it would affect one specific 

circumstance at this time: the City of Asheville's Public Water System and the Metropolitan 

Sewer District of Buncombe County.  Although legislation was not enacted in 2011, a special 

legislative committee, officially titled the "Legislative Research Commission on Metropolitan 

Sewerage/Water System," was formed and directed to study the issue over the course of four 

months in early 2012.   

  

In April of 2012 the study committee released its final report, which pointedly recommends 

"that the 2013 session of the North Carolina General Assembly consolidate the Public Utility 

Water System with the Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County".  Legislators who 

served on the study committee have recently confirmed publicly that they are crafting a bill and 

plan to introduce it in the 2013 long session to force the consolidation of the systems.  

  

There was even question included on the 2012 general election ballot for Asheville residents that 

asked "Shall the City of Asheville undertake the sale or lease of its water treatment system and 

water distribution system?"  Eighty-six percent of the respondents voted "no."  

  

The general concept of a General Assembly-forced merger of local government infrastructure 

sets a dangerous precedent that concerns all municipalities across North Carolina.    

 

 

 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution     

 

 

 



City of Claremont Resolution 13-12  January 7, 2013  

        
 

CITY OF CLAREMONT  
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
RESOLUTION # 13-12 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OPPOSING LEGISLATION THAT PROVIDES FOR THE 

FORCED TAKING OF MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM  

 

 

WHEREAS, Statewide legislation was introduced in the 2011 Session of the North 

Carolina General Assembly that would have forced the involuntary conveyance of a city-

owned water system to a Metropolitan Sewer District; and 

 

WHEREAS, prior to the beginning of the 2012 Session of the North Carolina General 

Assembly, the Legislative Research Commission recommended legislation that would 

force the City of Asheville to transfer its Municipal water system to a Metropolitan Sewer 

District; and  

 

WHEREAS, the 2012 Session of the North Carolina General Assembly enacted 

legislation to begin the process of the forceful taking of a Municipal water system; and 

 

WHERAS, public utilities have the unique responsibility to be protectors of public health 

and the environment, while serving as partners in the community’s growth and 

development; and   

 

WHERAS, the forced taking of any local government infrastructure sets a dangerous 

precedent in the State of North Carolina, a precedent that will have a chilling effect on any 

local government investing in needed infrastructure in the future, thereby endangering 

business opportunities and economic stability in the State and resulting in job losses for 

citizens here and across the State. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Claremont that:  

 

1.  Claremont is opposed to legislation that forces the transfer of any City’s 

municipal water system to another entity.    

 

  

2. Claremont is convinced that local solution arrived at by an open, collaborative 

process is preferable to a legislative directed disposition of local government 

assets.     

 

  

3. Claremont is opposed to the forced taking of any local government 

infrastructure because such taking sets a dangerous precedent that will have a 



City of Claremont Resolution 13-12  January 7, 2013  

chilling effect on any local government investing in needed infrastructure in the 

future, thereby endangering business opportunities and economic stability in the 

State and resulting in job losses for our citizens here and across the State.  

 

 

Adopted this 7
th

 day of January 2013. 

      

__________________________ 

     David B. Morrow, Mayor     

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 

Doug Barrick  

City Clerk 

 

 



EXHIBIT 9B 

 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

 

Date of Meeting: January 7, 2013    

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council  

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  2013 Claremont Legislative Agenda   

 

As the North Carolina State legislature begins to plan for the 2013 session these goals 

represent the highest priorities for the City of Claremont. The formal adoption of these 

specific items will give guidance to the City Manager and local delegation during the 

formulation of bills.  

 

 

Recommendation: Accept & Approve Legislative Agenda for 2013   

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT  

City of Claremont- 2013 Legislative Agenda    

 
     

City of Claremont  
2013 State Legislative Agenda  

 

 Support Infrastructure Financing: Transportation, Wastewater, Water and 
Stormwater 

The City of Claremont, as many local governments, has an aging wastewater, water and road 
infrastructure that is in need of maintenance and repair as well as areas that need improvement 
due to growth pressures. There are limited resources for local governments to utilize for 
infrastructure needs and funding shortfalls for transportation, wastewater, water and stormwater 
improvements at the state level. More support is needed for additional funding. 

 

 Seek legislation to allow all municipalities to adopt a prepared meals and 
beverage tax. 
 

Currently four counties (Cumberland, Dare, Mecklenburg, and Wake) and the Town of 
Hillsborough have the authority to levy a 1 percent prepared meals and beverage tax. The 
tax applies to meals served in restaurants, delivered to homes, or purchased on site and 
carried out. The tax raises over $30 million in these jurisdictions alone. If all municipalities 
imposed the tax, it would raise over $100 million in revenue statewide. These revenues 
would be available for any public purpose and could be used to fund essent ial public 
facilities, public safety, economic development, transportation, and other pressing needs, 
which would be an especially beneficial tool for communities in the current difficult 
economy. 
 

 Oppose transferring the responsibility of North Carolina’s secondary road 
infrastructure to counties – the elimination or decrease in current road 
infrastructure funding levels for municipalities or the transfer of any State 
maintained roads to municipalities 
 

As the State of North Carolina looks to update and increase its road infrastructure, various funding 
and road responsibility options have been discussed.  The City of Claremont opposes any State 
options that redirect State road responsibilities to counties.  Additionally, the City opposes all 
attempts to eliminate or decrease State transportation funds for municipalities Current law allows 
municipalities to individually negotiate with the Department of Transportation when considering 
the transfer of a road to a municipality.  The current process is working well and should remain.   
If the Counties were mandated to maintain secondary roads, the cost would require an increase on 
the property tax rate.  

 



DRAFT  

City of Claremont- 2013 Legislative Agenda    

 

 Oppose any State efforts to force additional unfunded mandates or take away 
local revenues as a result of the State Budget crisis.  

The Governor and members of the General Assembly begin to compile the Fiscal Year 14 budget 
short falls in revenue are expected. During previous State budget crises, the Governor and the 
General Assembly reduced the deficit by withholding revenues from cities and counties. The City 
of Claremont is wary that similar strategies to withhold state collected local revenues or other 
sources of funding could be used again this year.  

 

 Support legislation giving municipalities the option to use electronic legal 
public notices in lieu of publication is newspapers.  

 
Current law requires municipalities to use publications notice to provide public notice in 
many different situations. Cities and Towns can supplement these state mandates through 
electronic notice on websites and other locations but are not required to do so. This new 
legislation would eliminate the publication notice and authorize the use of electronic notice 
for public notices.  
 

 Seek legislation to modernize the local tax system by: 

o Giving municipalities the authority to levy a sales tax that applies within their 
corporate limits and is solely a municipal revenue;  

o Expanding the sales tax base to include more services, provided that any 
accompanying change in the local sales tax rate includes a perpetual hold harmless 
provision for individual cities and towns; 

o Reducing the complexity and inequity of the privilege license tax while 
maintaining the tax as a locally controlled source of revenue that supports services 
to businesses and consumers;  

o Providing all municipalities with additional local option tax revenue sources;  
o Requiring a one-year delay in implementation when a county changes its method 

of distributing sales tax revenue.  
 

 Support other legislative changes that coincide with Claremont’s Core Values 
and Mission Statement and promote and preserve the comfort,  convenience, 
security, better government and general welfare of the City and its residents 
and merchants.  

 
Claremont’s Core Values  
 

 Effective local, regional and state partnerships  

 Excellent and cost effective services including police, fire, rescue, and public works.  

 Long term financial stability  

 Planned growth and economic development  



DRAFT  

City of Claremont- 2013 Legislative Agenda    

 Fiscal accountability  

 Leisure and cultural activities  

 Environmentally sensible practices  

 Citizen Involvement  
 
Claremont Mission Statement  
 
“A progressive city dedicated to preserving small town values while planning  for the future.” 
 
 

 Support the NCLM and other sister governments in legislative changes that 
seek to sustain the foundation excellence in municipal governance.  
 

 



EXHIBITS 10/11 

 

 

Department, Committee & Manager Reports  
 

 

Date of Meeting: January 7, 2013    

      

 

To:  Mayor and the City Council 

 

From:  Doug Barrick, City Manager  

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:  Allow Departments, Committees & Manager to report on 

monthly activities and take questions.    

 

Item 10 
 

A. Quarterly Financial Report  
B. Youth Council  
C. Fire Department 
D. Police Department 
E. Public Works 
F. Rescue Squad  
G. Utilities Department  
H. Planning and Zoning 
I. Parks & Recreation Committee  
J. Appearance Committee 

 
 
Item 11 
 

City Managers Report  
 

 

 

Recommendation: Take Reports  

 

 

 

 

 



Quarterly Financial Report Fiscal Year 2012- 2013 

2nd Quarter 

2012-2013 2012-2013 %  Collected

 Budget Actual To  Budgeted

Property Taxes(Current & Prior Year) $1,891,450 $976,439 51.62%

Utility Franchise $187,000 $160,958 86.07%

Sales Tax $192,000 $159,458 83.05%

State Shared Revenues $100,150 $103,969 103.81%

Fees $13,900 $14,049 101.08%

Miscellaneous $9,000 $1,793 19.92%

Occupancy $8,500 $4,337 51.02%

Investments & Grants $3,000 $415 13.84%

Total To Date $2,405,000 $1,421,418 59.10%

Fund Balance Approp. $374,935 $0 0.00%

Total Budget $2,779,935 $1,421,418

2012-2013 2012-2013 % 2012-2013 Expenses

 Budget Actual To  Budget

City Council $72,146 $36,983 51.26%

Administration $400,160 $210,043 52.49%

Library $21,055 $7,784 36.97%

Planning $28,700 $13,718 47.80%

Police $772,198 $398,312 51.58%

Fire $675,626 $468,564 69.35%

Public Works $592,578 $328,528 55.44%

Recreation $69,950 $59,207 84.64%

Debt Service $147,522 $0 0.00%

Transfer to other funds $0

Total To Date $2,779,935 $1,523,139 54.79%

Revenues over(under) expenditures $0 ($101,721)

GENERAL FUND REVENUE

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

December 2012 



Quarterly Financial Report Fiscal Year 2012- 2013 

2nd Quarter 

CURRENT YEAR
2012-2013 2012-2013 % Collected 

 Budget Actual To Budgeted

Water & Sewer Sales $1,003,432 $566,358 56.44%

Taps & Connections $5,500 $750 13.64%

Utility Penalites $8,800 $5,700 64.77%

Sprinkler Fees $23,350 $24,700 105.78%

Reconnect Fees $2,000 $915 45.75%

Miscellancous & Investments $650 $7,968 1225.78%

Approriated Fund Balance $40,000 $0 0.00%

Total $1,083,732 $606,391 55.95%

CURRENT YEAR
2012-2013 2012-2013 % 2012-2013 Expenses

 Budget Actual To  Budget

Water Treatment $199,200 $103,714 52.07%

Water Maintenace  $79,575 $56,898 71.50%

Sewer Treatment $492,700 $239,882 48.69%

Sewer Maitnenace $150,045 $40,407 26.93%

Debt Service $162,212 $4,985 3.07%

Total To Date $1,083,732 $445,886 41.14%

Revenue over (under) expenses $160,505

WATER/SEWER REVENUE

WATER/SEWER EXPENSES

December 2012 



 

CLAREMONT FIRE DEPARTMENT 
2850 FIRE HOUSE LANE 

CLAREMONT, NC 28610 

828/459-9296 FAX 828/459-9732 
 

 

            December 2012  

 

The Claremont Fire Department responded to 23 calls for the month of December 2012 and 244 
year to date. 
 
Man hours spent on fire calls for the month totaled 125.9. 
 
The average number of member responses to calls this month 9, and for the year 8. 
 
Average response time to calls 4 min. 37 seconds till the first engine was on the scene for 
structure calls.  
 
Training for the month totaled 243.5 hours for the department. 
 
There were 0 business inspections for the month. 
 
The Fire Prevention Office performed 0 programs this month, installed 4 smoke detectors and 
replaced 4 smoke detector batteries.  Fire Prevention also participated in 2 car seat installation 
events.   
 
Updates on projects and fire department information: 
 

The fire department participated in the annual Claremont Parade.  We hosted several events at 
the station including Santa with the kids.   
 
We wish all a prospers and happy New Year!!   
 

 

 

 

 

Respectively submitted, 

Gary Sigmon, Fire Chief 

 



 

 
     Claremont Police Department 

Monthly Service 
December 2012 

 

Calls Answered 773 Citations Served 41 

Felonious Crimes 4 Warnings 58 

Misdemeanor 27 Business Escorts 84 

Accidents (PI) 0 Funeral Escorts 2 

Accidents (PD) 2 Animal Calls 1 

Warrants for Arrest 0 Vehicles Impounded 1 

Subpoenas Served 2 Alarms Answered 12 

Open Businesses 18 Motorist Assistance 24 

Property Checks 1011 Part-Time hours 426 

Court Hours 0   

 
Noted Events during the Month 

 

**There were no incidents to report during the annual Christmas Parade. 

 

1. Officers investigated two separate cases of Counterfeit Monies at BB&T. 

2. Officers investigated one case of B & E and Vandalism, one case of Assault on Female  

3. Officers investigated a case of Attempted Arson and Damage to Property involving the restrooms in the   

City Park. 

4. Officers made two arrests for Possession on Drugs and Drug Paraphernalia. 

5. Officers are investigating a case of Larceny of wheels and tires from a Uhaul truck at the Dive Shop. 

 

 

 

  

 

 
                                                                                                                                                                       Respectfully Submitted 

                                                                                                                 Gerald R. Tolbert 
Chief of Police 

                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                



6 WATER TURNED ON 835 LEAF BAGS TAKEN TO LANDFILL

6 WATER TURNED OFF 2.94 TONS OF ROUGH TRASH PICKED UP

40 METERS RE-READ 105 HRS. CHIPPING LIMBS

1 WATER LEAKS 12 HRS. MOWING

0 WATER TAPS 22 HRS. BUSH HOG

0 SEWER TAPS

2 DIRTY WATER COMPLAINTS 22 HRS. CLEAN STORM DRAINS

6142+26 JET SEWER LINES/ MANHOLES 12 HRS. CLEAN CURB & GUTTERING

5 # OF WHITE GOOD PICKUPS

45 OVERTIME HOURS 3 # OF TIMES RE-STOCK BATHROOMS

21 TRAINING HOURS 5 # OF TRASH PICKUPS

jet out and clean 425 feet of main sewer line+clean one man hole on cutrite street

jet out and clean 501 feet of main sewer line + wash out 3 man holes on 

south oxford street

jet out and clean 802 feet of main sewer line+ wash out 4 man holes

on Willard st

256 feet of main sewer line on school st + wash out 1 man hole

jet out and clean 641 feet of main sewer line + wash out 2 man holes

on Calvin & Byrd st

jet out and clean 2123 feet of main sewer line + 9 man holes on Catawba st

jet out and clean 684 feet of main sewer line + 2man holes on baker st

jet out and clean 709 feet of main sewer line +4 man holes at Claremont 

commons

excavate main street and repair 6" water line due to fracture in pipe

wash and clean road after pipe repair

PERSONNEL PARK

CLAREMONT PUBLIC WORKS
MONTHLY REPORT

DECEMBER 2012

OTHER

WATER DEPARTMENT MAINTENANCE DEPT.



Claremont Rescue Squad 

2748 S. Oxford St. 
Claremont, N.C. 28613 

828.459.7968 
 

 Calls for November - 45 total calls, 44 were hot. Our average response time 

was 5:52. For the year our total will be almost 1100 calls. 

 

 We had our Christmas Dinner and Awards Banquet on December 6th at 

Rock Barn. Our 2012 Rescue members of the year were Jerry Peeler and 

James Austin. We gave the thumb award to Heather Keller. Jason Crooks 

was thanked for his service as Chief for the past 6 years.  

 

We had several members who won service awards including : 

 5 years -Carl Greene, Melanie Sigmon and Billie Peeler.  

 10 years - JT Bell.  

 15 years - JP Peeler.  

 20 years - David Garrison and Jody Smyre.  

 25 years - Jeff Witherspoon.  

 35 years  - Gary Reitzel. Thanks to the Mayor for presenting this 

award to Gary. He and his mother have served as 

Secretary/Treasurer for every year the Squad has been in service 

except for 2 years. The Squad was formed in 1958. They have also 

worked with every Chief that has been there. 

 

 We have several members who are going to be attending a Structural 

Collapse class at Surry Community College starting later this month. 

 



 CITY OF CLAREMONT  

UTILITY SYSTEM 

MONTHLY UPDATE  

December 2012  
 

 
The City of Claremont operates a Utility System that includes  two water reciving vaults, two 
300,000 gallon elevated water storage tanks, five sewer pump stations, two waste water 
treatment plants, and roughly 25 miles of sewer and water lines. The two treatment plants 
are permitted to handle 400,000 gallons of waste water per day with 300,000 allocated to the 
McLin Creek plant and 100,000 to the North plant. The City of Claremont purchases all of its 
water from the City of Conover and contracts the operation of the waste water treament 
plants with the City of Hickory. This report is intended to give a snapshot of the monthly 
activities of the utility system. 
 

Claremont Water & Waste Water Customer Profile & Usage 

Month  Residential 
Water 
Customers  

Residential 
Water  
Usage 

Residential 
Active 
Sewer  

Commerical 
&Industrial  
Customers 

Commerical  
& Industrial  
Usage 

Commerical  
& Industrial  
Active Sewer 

June In  613 2,440,300 497 109 3,838,300 80 

June Out  174 605,900 10 17 221,800 3 

July In 615 2,528,700 499 113 4,308,300 83 

July Out  174 696,000 10 17 283,000 3 

August In 614 2,828,200 498 114 5,149,700 84 

August Out  173 756,00 10 17 287,600 3 

September In  616 2,615,700 499 113 5,090,550 83 

September Out  172 723,600 10 17 299,900 3 

October In  614 1,995,200 497 115 4,273,900 84 

October Out  174 583,000 10 17 224,500 3 

November In  614 2,527,900 497 115 4,642,670 84 

November Out  174 735,800 10 17 440,400 3 

 
 

Claremont Water Usage vs Water Purchased 

Month Purchased from Conover Billed by Claremont 

February 2012  5,306,500 5,652,300 

March 2012  7,315,000 6,013,900 

April 2012  8,725,000 5,704,800 

May 2012  8,156,500 6,548,701 

June 2012  9,759,500 7,106,300 

July 2012 10,272,000 7,816,000 

August 2012 18,000,500 9,021,500 

September 2012 19,582,000 22,729,750 

October 2012  8,225,000 7,076,600 

November 2012  7,330,500 8,346,770 



System Activities  

 Continuing to evaluate regional options for wastewater treatment  
 Working with Catawba County to extend a water line to the Bunker Hill Covered Bridge  
 Finailized contruction of a cell phone tower colocation on the Kelly Blvd Water Tank  
 Began process to install back up power at the School Street Lift Station  

 
McLin Creek WWTP  

McLin Creek WWTP- November 2012 - NPDES Compliance  

Parameter  Limitation Minimum Maximum Average 

Flow, GPD  300,000 58,000 155,000 113,000 

BOD  mg/l 8.0mg 2.0 4.6 3.3 

TSS mg/l 30mg 2.4 3.4 3.0 

Fecal Coliform 200ml 1 1 1 

Ammonia-Nitrogen, mg/l 2.0mg .10 .16 .11 

Dissovled Oxygen, mg/l 5.0mg 6.9 7.8 7.5 

 

Mclin Creek WWTP Flow, Gallons per day 

Month  Min Max Average 

November 2012 58,000 158,000 113,000 

October 2012 75,000 197,000 133,000 

September 2012 69,000 296,000 141,000 

August 2012  80,000 202,000 141,000 

July 2012 62,000 228,000 137,000 

June 2012 72,000 202,000 131,000 

May 2012  58,000 331,000 151,000  

April 2012 63,000 177,000 122,000 

March 2012  91,000 268,000 133,000 

February 2012  64,000 181,000 126,000 

January 2012 72,000 186,000 125,000 

December 2011  52,000 290,000 142,000 

November 2011 83,000 348,000 148,000 

October 2011 69,000 183,000 126,000 
 

NCDENR LETTERS & NOTICES OF VIOLATIONS 

 None 

 

 

 

 



North WWTP 

North WWTP-September 2012 - NPDES Permit Compliance 

Parameter  Limitation Minimum Maximum Average 

Flow, GPD  100,000 53,000 107,000 76,000 

BOD  mg/l 30.0mg 7.2 9.6 8.1 

TSS mg/l 30mg 11.2 17.2 13.8 

Fecal Coliform 200ml 1 2 1 

Ammonia-Nitrogen, mg/l 4.0mg .10 .79 .28 

Dissovled Oxygen, mg/l 5.0mg 7.0 7.9 7.7 

 

North WWTP Flow, Gallons per day 

Month  Min Max Average 

November 2012 53,000 107,000 76,000 

October 2012 55,000 83,000 67,000 

September 2012 29,000 106,000 61,000 

August 2012  41,000 80,000 57,000 

July 2012 27,000 66,000 54,000 

June 2012  44,000 76,000 55,000 

May 2012 23,000 143,000 49,000 

April 2012  36,000 94,000 65,000 

March 2012 48,000 89,000 64,000 

February 2012  44,000 82,000 61,000 

January 2012  34,000 89,000 63,000 

December 2011  42,000 131,000 72,000 

November 2011 45,000 143,000 65,000 

 
NCDENR LETTERS & NOTICES OF VIOLATIONS  

 None  

Claremont Waste Water Collections System 

 
No Fines or Issues  
 

 
 



 

 Claremont Planning Report 
December 2012 

 

 

Zoning Permits Issued 
 

 No Permits were issued in December 
 

Code Enforcement 
 

 Monitored sign issues and outdoor storage issues 
 

 
Planning Board Work 
 

 Planning Board did not met in December  
 

Other Work 
 

 Answered numerous zoning/planning questions 
 Finalized Certificate of Occupancy for Choice Health 
 Attended the Carolina Thread Trail Forum in Mooresville   

 

 



City of Claremont 
Parks and Recreation Committee 

Special Meeting 

December 17, 2012 

 

Minutes 
 

 The meeting had Mayor David Morrow, City Manager Doug Barrick, and the 

Deputy Police Chief Gary Bost in attendance to assist in the evaluation of the Christmas 

Parade. 

 

 This meeting was called to go over some concerns about the Christmas Parade.  

The staging area that was used this year proved to be the best place to have all of the 

participants’ line up.  There were some participants who wanted to move things to their 

liking.  There were two different groups where one of their people took it upon 

themselves to vent their feelings with some of the committee members.  Their concerns 

were accepted, but the language used was not approved of by other members of the 

committee.   

 

 One group was large and the first reaction of the committee was to ban the group 

from future participation.  After discussing the situation and thinking of the group, it was 

agreed to not ban them as there are a number of the members of the group who live in 

Claremont, and they had nothing to do with the incident.  The committee felt that the 

Parade Chairperson would inform the leader that the behavior of one of the parents would 

not be allowed.  In the other incident, there were members who were told of the behavior, 

but could not identify that person.  That group will be looking into the situation at their 

meetings.  

 

 The committee felt that the numbering of the groups was a good idea; however, 

having different color zones was confusing to the participants.  Next year the numbering 

will be from one to one hundred fifty or whatever the highest number may be.  The 

committee felt that all walking groups will assemble at the cemetery on Highway 70 and 

be brought into the parade as their number is called.   

 

 All in all, the parade was a success, and we did receive a number of complements.  

Each year the committee has worked to improve from the previous year.  This will be 

taken under consideration again in 2013.  The parade was only 20 minutes late getting 

started this year.  The reason was waiting to get all units in place first. The goal is to have 

the lead group step off next year promptly at 3:00 PM.  If a unit is not ready at 3:00 PM, 

they will be put in the back. 

 

 A point was brought up about the vendors setting up in the City Hall parking lot.  

There is no need to have the vendors set up at 6:00 AM as the crowd did not begin to 

arrive until around noon.  There were some vendors who did not need to be there since 

they were not selling food. The committee felt that this should be addressed next year as 

we begin to set up for the parade.  One suggestion was to limit the food vendors to non-



profit local churches and schools. One thing that we have to keep in mind is we do not 

want to conflict with the businesses in downtown Claremont with outsiders coming in to 

compete with the local business.  

 

 Next we discussed the Senior Citizens Christmas Dinner.  Everyone felt that it 

was a big success.  One remark was made that we have a problem with this year’s dinner.  

Because the event was such a success and everyone enjoyed themselves so much, that in 

2013 we can expect to have a much larger number of participants.  The problem will be 

where can we seat all of the citizens? 

 

 Everyone complemented Danny Hedrick for his leadership with the parade and 

the Senior Citizens Christmas Dinner.  He led the committee in both events, and they 

proved to be successful, even with a few mishaps in the parade. 

 

 Questions were asked about the picture taking with Santa and the Carriage Ride.  

There were about 35 families who came to have pictures made, but there is no record of 

how many pictures were sold.  The committee did not know the price of the pictures and 

this was something that was suggested that next year the committee be given a price list.  

As for the Carriage Ride, it seemed to go off very well.  Gail had her board members 

there working with the people taking the ride.  She had a vehicle with flashing lights 

following behind the carriage with bright lights on the carriage to warn oncoming traffic.   

There was a member walking beside the horse to assure that it did not get upset from any 

distractions. 

 

 The meeting was adjourned with everyone feeling good about the program on 

December 1.    

 

      Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

 

      Henry H. Helton, Jr.  

      Special Events Coordinator  



 
 

Appearance Commission Minutes 
Monday December 17, 2012  

  

  

Winners of the Claremont Christmas Decorations Contest 
The Appearance Commission chose 7 winners for the Christmas Decorations 
Contest.  The committee decided to purchase flowers from Claremont Florist to 
present to the winners. Glenn will deliver them.  The winners are as follows: 
  
Randy and Rhonda Eckerd - 2991 Cloninger Dr. 
David and Stephanie Hollar - 2585 Genelia Dr. (Charlotte's Crossing) 
Charles Connor IV - Catawba St. 
Pastor Wesley and Elisa Frye - West Main St. 
Larry and Brenda Pannell - 2893 Dogwood Dr. 
Lauralyn Reed - 3057 West Main St. 
Lee and Amy Miller - 2691 Savannah Lane (Old Savannah) 
  
Honorable Mention: 
Judy Hall - 2725 Cardinal Lane 
Frank and Sandra Thomas - 4725 S. Depot 
Scott and Tammy Lewis - W. Calvin St 
Entire Street - North Lookout 
Entire Street - Dogwood Drive. 
  
 




